
RFP2023-001 
Information Technology Maintenance and Support 

QUESTION & ANSWER DOCUMENT 

As of September 7, 2023 

Q. What would the designation of responsibilities be on the server, what 
is the full responsibility of the third-party? There appears to be overlap in 
the server management. 22 - General Conditions say it is managed by a 
third-party organization that will remain in place, but several items in IT 
Maintenance and Support and Managing Networks directly overlap. If the 
server is running AD it is responsible for network DNS and authentication 
and that may directly affect E) Diagnosing and correcting application 
problems, B) Assist with any internal connectivity issues, D) Database 
installation, configuration, integration and optimization, F) management of 
user login and user access rights. Set up new users and edit or remove 
existing users on the server/active directory, and/or back-end database or 
applications as required. 
A. Details will be provided to the successful proponent. 

Q. Is there any record of existing and ongoing issues 
A. Details will be provided to the successful proponent. 

Q. What is the service request load is there currently - ticket load? 
A. Anticipated service requests are 15-20 per year. Please be advised this is 

approximate as it is impossible to determine future issues that may arise and the 
number of service requests per year can change at any time. 

Q. Who is managing the servers that run AD currently if this proposal 
doesn't include that. 
A. Details will be provided to the successful proponent. 

Q. Any projects in the works or proposed that we should know about? 
A. There are no anticipated projects that would impact the scope of work included in 
this RFP. 

Q. Phone system out of scope? 
A. Yes 



Q. Cell phones out of scope?  
A. Yes. 

Q. MFA currently in place or yet to be deployed?  
A. Details will be provided to the successful proponent. 

Q. What firewalls are in place - make/model/date of purchase/under 
support agreement? 
A. Details will be provided to the successful proponent. 

Q. What kind of switches are in place - make/model/date of purchase/
under support agreement? 
A. Details will be provided to the successful proponent. 

What databases are in place and being used by staff? 
A. Details will be provided to the successful proponent. 

Q. What they have in place for WiFi and make/model/date of purchase/
under support agreement? 
A. Details will be provided to the successful proponent. 

Q. How is the township currently being supported?  
A. The Village is currently supported by a third party contractor. 

As of September 6, 2023 

Q. Does your team have access to all authentications for IT equipment of 
the Village of Sunridge? 
A. Details to be provided to the successful proponent. 

Q. Does your team use a password management system? If not how are 
security passwords currently being stored? 
A. Yes, the Village has a password management system. 

Q. Are there any licensing subscriptions that are required to continue to 



keep networking equipment functional?   
A. Standard licensing subscriptions are in place, details will be provided to the 
successful proponent. 

Q. Do both locations communicate with one another? For example, 
Munisoft client at the arena talking to a server in the office? Possibly 
with a VPN? 
A. No locations require communication with one another. 

Q. Do any desktops/laptops need to be backed up?  
A. Yes. 

Q. Which Microsoft License(s) does each member of the team have? 
A. The majority of licensing is Basic or Standard with the exception of one E level 
license. 

Q. Is 2-step authentication enabled for each Microsoft member account?  
A.  Accounts are set up for 2-step authentication.  

Q. Are you looking for monthly or annual commitments of Microsoft 
licenses? 
A. Currently monthly. 
Q. Are the cell phones and tablets currently managed and secured? 
A. Managed by staff, with support as needed. 

Q. What do you use for your networking equipment? Make and Models of 
Devices?  
A. Details to be provided to the successful proponent.  

As of September 5, 2023 
Question: What is the duration/engagement of the RFP contract?  
Please share standard pricing sheet to quote our price, or suggest the 
format of pricing (annually or quarterly or Monthly) 
What type of Network/Security appliances/firewall/Switches/Routers/Proxy 
devices are currently in place? 
What type of monitoring solution is currently in use? 

Answer: At this time the duration has not been determined, the Village is not looking to 



be locked into a contract. 

The Cost Summary Sheet was included as part of the proposal package.  This is the 
template that the bid will need to be submitted on. 

Details including, but not limited to, network, security, firewall will be defined with the 
successful bidder. 

Question: Are you able to provide information on the current equipment/ 
software in use. If possible, a general inventory of number of servers, 
desktops, laptops, printers, routers, switches ect. As well as a list of 
software currently being used.  
Answer: Details such as this are included in the Proposal Document and in the Question 
and Answer Document. 

How many workstations , network devices, firewalls will need maintenance 
and support? 
How many total IP addresses / devices are on the internal network? 
What does your cloud footprint currently consist of, e.g. Azure, AWS, GCP 
etc? 
Could you please share your Next Generation Firewall toolsets/platforms? 
Are there any data sources that need correction/fine-tuning? 

Answer: Details including, but not limited to, network, security, firewall will be defined 
with the successful bidder. 

As of August 30, 2023 

Question: Is there a detailed list available of your current footprint? 

Answer: At this time a detailed list of our IT Asset Inventory is not available.  The Village 
of Sundridge is a small rural municipality with approximately 10-15 employees. The IT 
equipment used is standard. 

There are approximately: 5 Desktop Computers, 5 Laptops, 5 iPads and 3-4 Mobile 
Phones. 

Question: Can you provide the following information: - sites: names, addresses, 
and number of users in every site - Operating systems: what operating systems is 
your equipment is running - Software used and require our support.  



Do you have any agreement with hardware/software provider for support and 
warranty 

Answer: The sites are listed in Section 19 (Locations) of the RFP Document.  There are 
approximately 10-15 employees in total.  We work with Windows 10 and Windows 11.  
The software used is noted under the Project Scope (Maintenance and Support).  There 
are no other agreements applicable to this RFP for support and/or warranty. 

Question: Do you need any onsite support, if yes, please elaborate for what 
cases. 

Answer: The preference of the Village is for on-site support to be available to us. Many 
issues/requests are able to be managed remotely, however, on-site support may be 
necessary depending on the issue or request.  On-site support would also be required 
for equipment installation and annual maintenance (if applicable). 

Question: Do you have any onsite servers, if yes, please provide details of the 
servers you have. 

Answer: As per Section 22, the Village has an on-site server, although this server is for 
a specific program and is managed separately, Management of this server is not 
considered part of this proposal.   

Question: Do you use cloud services / servers? if yes, please provide the type of 
support you need on the cloud 

Answer: The Village uses one cloud server through Microsoft SharePoint. 

Question: Concerning Maintenance of system (state frequency and total cost) : is 
there any breakdown of the hardware inventory ? will that also include end user 
desktops and laptops. 

Answer:  At this time a detailed list of our IT Asset Inventory is not available.  The Village 
of Sundridge is a small rural municipality with approximately 10-15 employees. The IT 
equipment used is standard. 

There are approximately: 5 Desktop Computers, 5 Laptops, 5 iPads and 3-4 Mobile 
Phones. 


